Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of
Kopran Research Laboratories Limited
Report on the audit of Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Kopran Research Laboratories
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial
statements.
Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by the Management
and Board of Directors.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.
1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2.

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;
c.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule issued thereunder;
e. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31, 2021, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021, from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure-B”; and

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanation given to us:
i.

The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements.

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses on derivative contracts

iii.

There were no amounts, which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For NGS & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 119850W

Ganesh Toshniwal
Partner
Membership Number: 046669
Mumbai
May 26, 2021
UDIN: 21046669AAAAKH4757

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of Kopran
Research Laboratories Limited
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date)
i.

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.
b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Fixed Assets have been physically
verified by the management during the year, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification with book records. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets.
c.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deed of immovable properties are held in the name of the
company.

ii.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit, has been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not
material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

iii.

Based on the audit procedure and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loan secured or unsecured to the companies, firm, or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Therefore, paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not
applicable.

iv.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making
investments and providing guarantees. The Company has not provided any security in connection with
a loan to any other body corporate or person and accordingly, compliance under Sections 185 and 186
of the Act in respect of providing securities is not applicable to the Company.

v.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of
Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed
thereunder to the extent notified. Therefore, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

vi.

We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by
Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

vii. a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs,
cess, professional tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities.
b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, goods and services tax, duty of
customs, cess, professional tax and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31,
2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
c.

Details of dues of Service Tax and Excise Duty which have not been deposited as at March 31, 2021
on account of dispute are given below:
Name of the
Statute

Nature
of
the dues

Amount
(Rs.)

Central Excise
Act, 1944
Finance
Act,
1994

Excise Duty

313,527

Period
to
which
the
amount
relates
2012-13

Service tax

340,463

2015-16

Central Excise
Act, 1944

Excise
Rebate

186,371

2016-17

Forum where
pending

dispute

is

Joint Secretary of Government
of India Ministry of Finance
Central Excise and Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal
Principal Commissioner (RA)

viii.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has not taken any loans
from Government or any Financial Institution nor has it issued any debentures.

ix.

Based on our audit procedure and on the basis information and explanation given by the management,
we are of the opinion that money raised by company by way of term loan have been applied for the
purpose for which they were raised. The company did not raise any money by way of Initial Public offer
or further public offer.

x.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the management.

xi.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the books of accounts verified by us, the
Managerial remuneration has been paid and provided by the Company in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with the Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

xii.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the
order is not applicable.

xiii.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinations of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone financial statements as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiv.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, paragraph 3(xiv) of the order is not
applicable.

xv.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with him. Therefore, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

xvi.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore,
paragraph 3(xvi) of the order is not applicable.

For NGS & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 119850W

Ganesh Toshniwal
Partner
Membership Number: 046669
Mumbai
May 26, 2021
UDIN: 21046669AAAAKH4757

Annexure – B to the Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial statements of Kopran Research
Laboratories Limited or the year ended March 31, 2021
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements
under Section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)
Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Kopran
Research Laboratories Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March
31, 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls overfinancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit toobtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgments, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
For NGS & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 119850W

Ganesh Toshniwal
Partner
Membership Number: 046669
Mumbai
May 26, 2021
UDIN: 21046669AAAAKH4757

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021
Particulars

(Amount In Rs.)
Note No.

ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital Work-in-Progress
Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets under Development
Financial Assets
Investments
Security Deposits
Other Non Current Assets
Total Non-Current Assets
2. Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank balances other than the above
Loans
Other financial assets
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

4

76,74,77,545
37,08,73,174
7,78,130
2,98,03,695

82,87,44,528
20,92,99,019
10,76,138
2,24,22,671

6
7
8

8,87,325
88,50,508
8,27,96,144
1,26,14,66,521

8,87,325
67,00,508
7,77,39,900
1,14,68,70,089

9

72,50,09,820

47,32,55,226

10
11
12
13
14
15

70,55,70,570
4,05,431
3,06,31,774
1,31,56,266
17,70,90,603
1,65,18,64,464

50,68,86,235
1,73,676
2,96,68,250
9,13,78,258
7,62,900
7,03,65,987
1,17,24,90,533

2,91,33,30,985

2,31,93,60,622

16
17

20,00,00,000
1,52,66,65,426
1,72,66,65,426

20,00,00,000
1,16,56,52,852
1,36,56,52,852

18
19
20

18,85,29,467
3,60,80,652
2,67,29,722
25,13,39,841

22,15,99,631
3,32,04,074
2,68,68,871
28,16,72,576

21
22

29,75,57,878

28,71,91,714

1,04,50,911

17,03,587

46,71,73,085
13,11,74,530
69,71,214
8,76,414
2,11,21,686
93,53,25,717

25,23,64,173
7,45,96,106
5,37,67,899
5,66,392
18,45,322
67,20,35,193

2,91,33,30,984

2,31,93,60,622

-1

-0

5

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity
Total Equity
Liabilities
1. Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Provisions
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Total Non-Current Liabilities
2. Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Trade Payables
a) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities
Provisions
Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
Total Current Liabilities

23
24
25
26

Total Equity and Liabilities
See accompanying notes forming part of financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 119850W

Ganesh Toshniwal
Partner
M.No. 046669
Mumbai
May 26, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Kopran Research Laboratories Limited

Chandra M. Singhi
Director
DIN : 1793293

Lekha Jogi
Chief Financial Officer

Vandana Somani
Director
DIN : 01218254

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
Particulars
REVENUE
Revenue from operations
Other Income
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Finance Costs
Employee Benefits Expense
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Other Expenses
Total Expenses

(Amount In Rs.)
Note No.

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

27
28

2,90,15,72,749
10,06,90,638
3,00,22,63,387

1,92,65,09,928
64,08,078
1,93,29,18,006

29

1,81,45,44,174
2,94,40,125
81,91,969
2,98,51,765
18,81,79,631
8,79,90,442
36,54,45,185
2,52,36,43,291

1,26,79,94,593
(5,47,85,020)
3,11,66,033
16,83,04,855
9,04,20,157
32,88,62,591
1,83,19,63,209

Profit Before Tax and Exceptional Items
Exceptional items
(1) Central Excise / Service Tax of earlier years
Profit before Tax
Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax
(2) Deferred Tax
(3) Taxation adjustment of earlier years

47,86,20,096

10,09,54,797

47,86,20,096

55,41,648
9,54,13,149

12,54,06,364
(5,00,391)
12,49,05,973

2,42,63,757
12,42,438
20,37,506
2,75,43,700

Profit For The Year
Other Comprehensive Income /(Loss)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit and Loss
Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans [(expenses) / write
back]
Income tax effect on Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans
[(charge) / credit]
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference in translating the financial statements of foreign
operation
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year

35,37,14,123

6,78,69,449

14,09,693

(3,53,662)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year
Earnings Per Equity Share of Face Value of ` 10/- each
Basic and Diluted
See accompanying notes Forming part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 119850W

35,47,62,574

6,75,15,787

17.69

3.39

30
32
31
4&5
33

(3,61,242)

10,48,451

(3,53,662)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Kopran Research Laboratories Limited

Chandra M. Singhi
Director
DIN : 1793293
Ganesh Toshniwal
Partner
M.No. 046669
Mumbai
May 26, 2021

-

Lekha Jogi
Chief Financial Officer

Vandana Somani
Director
DIN : 01218254

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
Particulars
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit Before Tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Interest income recognised in profit or loss
Defined benefit plan expense-Gratuity
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Capital Contribution from Holding Company
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade payables
Increase / (Decrease) in Short-term & Long-term provisions
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial liabilities
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current and Non-Current Assets
Effects of exchange fluctuation reserve
Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid (net of refund)
Net cash generated by operating activities
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of tangible/ intangible assets (including capital
work-in-progress & Capital Advance)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Investment in Subsidiary Company
Loans Given
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest and financial charges paid
Proceeds / (Repayment) Non Current and Current borrowings (Net)
Net cash used in financing activities

(Amount In Rs.)
Year ended
March 31, 2021
47,86,20,096

Year ended
March 31, 2020
9,54,13,149

8,79,90,442
(71,74,965)
14,09,693
6,52,897
62,50,000
2,98,51,765

9,04,20,157
(47,36,346)
(3,53,662)
62,50,000
3,11,66,033

22,35,56,236
31,86,600
(4,67,96,686)
5,65,78,424
(19,86,84,335)
(25,17,54,594)
(1,45,43,366)
(11,17,80,860)

(4,34,00,618)
51,39,505
1,90,52,673
(1,77,24,545)
63,81,038
93,12,205
33,27,217
65,15,711

25,73,61,348
(10,61,30,000)
15,12,31,348

20,67,62,518
(3,28,08,235)
17,39,54,283

(20,06,83,527)
46,50,001
9,13,78,258
71,74,965
(9,74,80,303)

(9,18,97,457)
(8,87,325)
(9,13,78,258)
47,36,346
(17,94,26,694)

(2,98,51,765)
(2,27,04,001)
(5,25,55,766)

(3,11,66,033)
3,92,61,018
80,94,985

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

11,95,279
2,98,41,926

26,22,574
2,72,19,352

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

3,10,37,205

2,98,41,926

1,25,620

20,748

2,79,811
3,06,31,774
3,10,37,205

1,52,928
2,96,68,250
2,98,41,926

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on Hand
Bank Balances:
In Current Accounts
In Fixed Deposits with original maturity less than 3 months
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
See the accompanying notes forming part of the financial Statements
In terms of our report attached
For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 119850W

Ganesh Toshniwal
Partner
M.No. 046669
Mumbai
May 26, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Kopran Research Laboratories Limited

Chandra M. Singhi
Director
DIN : 1793293

Lekha Jogi
Chief Financial Officer

Vandana Somani
Director
DIN : 01218254

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

(Amount In Rs.)

A) Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 16)
Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at the end of the reporting year

As at
March 31, 2020
No.of shares Amount
2,00,00,000
20,00,00,000
2,00,00,000
20,00,00,000

As at
March 31, 2019
No.of shares
Amount
2,00,00,000
20,00,00,000
2,00,00,000
20,00,00,000

B) Other Equity (Refer Note 17)

Retained earnings
Particulars

As at April 01, 2019
Profit for the year
Capital Contribution from holding
Other comprehensive income for the year
As at March 31, 2020

Securities
Premium
Reserve
1,34,70,78,150
1,34,70,78,150

As at April 01, 2020
Profit for the year
Capital Contribution from holding
Other comprehensive income for the year
As at March 31, 2021

1,34,70,78,150
1,34,70,78,150

Capital
Contribution Retained Earnings
from holding
1,53,64,583
(26,98,93,264)
6,78,69,449
62,50,000
2,16,14,583
(20,20,23,815)
2,16,14,583
62,50,000
2,78,64,583

(20,20,23,815)
35,37,14,123
15,16,90,308

Other
Comprehensive
Income
Remeasurements of
net defined benefit
plans
(6,62,404)
(3,53,662)
(10,16,066)
(10,16,066)
10,48,451
32,385

Total

1,09,18,87,065
6,78,69,449
62,50,000
(3,53,662)
1,16,56,52,852
1,16,56,52,852
35,37,14,123
62,50,000
10,48,451
1,52,66,65,426

Nature and Purpose of Reserves:
a) Securities Premium Reserve
Securities premium reserve is credited when shares are issued at premium. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act, to issue bonus
shares, to provide for premium on redemption of shares or debentures, write-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs, etc

b) Capital Reserve
Nil
c) Retained Earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any tranfer to General Reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to the
shareholders
See accompanying notes Forming part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 119850W

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Kopran Research Laboratories Limited

Chandra M. Singhi
Director
DIN : 1793293
Ganesh Toshniwal
Partner
M.No. 046669
Mumbai
May 26, 2021

Lekha Jogi
Chief Financial Officer

Rakesh Doshi
Executive Director
DIN : 00359832

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Financial Statements
1 Corporate Information
Kopran Research Laboratories Limited (KRLL) (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India
and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API)

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on May 26, 2021.
2 Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation
Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

Historical Cost Convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the followings:
• certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at fair value or
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period.
• assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell;
• defined benefit plans plan assets measured at fair value; and
• Derivative financial instruments;

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (which is the functional currency of the
Company) and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

2.2 Current/non current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in Company's normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
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Notes forming part of the standalone Financial Statements
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial
statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is entity’s functional and presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the year end and not
covered under forward exchange contracts are translated at the functional currency spot rate of
exchange at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(b) Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:
- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
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The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels as
follows:
• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted)
This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
• Level 2
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
• Level 3
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
(c) Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and are disclosed separately under the head "Other
Current Assets". once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

(d) Property, plant and equipment
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Property,
Plant and Equipment (PPE) recognized as of April 01, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the
Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date.

PPE are stated at actual cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Actual cost is
inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses for bringing the asset
to its working conditions for its intended use (net of recoverable taxes) and any cost directly
attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Management. It include professional fees and borrowing costs
for qualifying assets.
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Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the
total cost of the item is depreciated separately. When significant parts of plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other
repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value
only if it increases the future benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other
expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period
during which such expenses are incurred.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate
to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of Property, plant and equipment are disclosed as “Capital
advances” under "Other Non - Current Assets" and the cost of assets not ready intended use as at the
balance sheet date are disclosed as 'Capital work-in-progress'.
An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of PPE is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalized. Indirect expenditure incurred during
construction period is capitalized to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to
construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred
during the construction period which is neither related to the construction activity nor is incidental
thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciation is calculated on straight line basis using the useful lives estimated by the management,
which are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.
On assets acquired on lease (including improvements to the leasehold premises), amortization has
been provided for on Straight Line Method over the period of lease.
The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary,
changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.
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Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other
factors is provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life.
(e) Intangible assets
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of intangible
assets recognized as of April 01, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost as on the transition date.
Intangible assets are stated at cost (net of recoverable taxes) less accumulated amortization and
impairment loss. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives
on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful life of an
identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence,
demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known
technological advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically
including at each financial year end and if necessary, changes in estimates are accounted for
prospectively.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized.

Amortisation methods and periods
Intangible assets comprising of goodwill and product development cost is amortized on a straight line
basis over the useful life of five years which is estimated by the management.
The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and if necessary,
changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.
(f) Impairment of non financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount
of the asset over its remaining useful life.
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A previously recognized impairment loss (except for goodwill) is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited to the carrying amount of the asset.

(g) Leases
(i) As a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. Leases of property,
plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected
inflationary cost increases.
(ii) As a lessor
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding
in respect of the lease.
Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

(h) Inventories
Raw Materials, Stores and Spares and Packing Material are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value.
Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods and Stock-in-Trade are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost of Raw Materials, Stores & Spares and Packing Materials is determined using First in First
out (FIFO) Method. Cost of Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods is determined on absorption costing
method.
(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties including taxes. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of
control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we
expect to receive in exchange for those products or services.
Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as of
April 1, 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method , the comparatives have
not been retrospectively adjusted. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 was insignificant.
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The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria:
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the
goods have been passed to the buyer.
Revenue from services are recognised as they are rendered based on agreements/ arrangements with
the concerned parties.
Contract balances
Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional.
Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due)

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return
Right of return assets
Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned by
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected
costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The
Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of
returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products. This is disclosed
along with inventories.
Refund liabilities
A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding
change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Interest income
Interest income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amortized cost,
is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
Dividend income
Revenue is recognised when the company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
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(j) Income Taxes
(i) Current income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting year. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax is recognized on
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
(iii) Minimum Alternate Tax
MAT payable for a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company
recognizes MAT credit available in the statement of profit and loss as deferred tax with a corresponding
asset only to the extent that there is probable certainty that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The
said asset is shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement’ under Deferred Tax. The Company reviews the same at
each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have the probable
certainty that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.
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(k) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets
Initial Recognition
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
-

Debt instruments at amortised cost
Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

(i) Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
(ii) Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
- the objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
(iii) Debt instrument at FVTPL
FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorisation as at amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

(iv) Equity instruments measured at FVTOCI
All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the
value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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(v) Cash and Cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original
maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Investments in subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures
The Company has accounted for its subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures at cost.
De-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognized only when
- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.
Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognized if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the
asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL), simplified model
approach for measurement and recognition of Impairment loss on Trade receivables or any contractual
right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the year is recognized as income /
expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial liabilities
Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrumentsis recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.
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Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortized cost unless at initial
recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss.
Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(i) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting year. They are recognized initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(ii) Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

(iii) Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability
at fair value and if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amount of income recognised.

De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.
Embedded derivatives
Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of
Ind AS 109 are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as
effective hedging instruments.
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Reclassification of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the
Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the
Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the
change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, full currency
swap, options and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks
respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if
a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or nonfinancial liability.
For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
- Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or
liability or an unrecognised firm commitment.
- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or
the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes the Company’s risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/economic relationship, the
hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will
assess the effectiveness of changes in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are
expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in air value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which they were designated.
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Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
(i) Fair value hedges
Changes in fair value of the designated portion of derivatives that qualify as fair value hedges are
recognised in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.
(ii) Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the
cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The
Company uses forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments. Amounts recognised as OCI are transferred to profit or loss when
the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged
item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as OCI are
transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised or if its designation as a hedge is
revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI remains separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or
the foreign currency firm commitment is met. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to
occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(l) Convertible financial instrument
Convertible instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the
contract.
On issuance of the convertible instruments, the fair value of the liability component is determined
using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This amount is classified as a
financial liability measured at amortised cost (net of transaction costs) until it is extinguished on
conversion or redemption.
The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in
equity since conversion option meets Ind AS 32 criteria for fixed to fixed classification. Transaction
costs are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity components of the convertible
instrument based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are initially recognised.
(m) Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
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(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided
by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.
(iii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(a) defined benefit plans viz. gratuity,
(b) defined contribution plans viz. provident fund.
Gratuity obligations
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit
credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in
the statement of profit and loss.
Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are disclosed as "Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans" under the head "Other
Comprehensive Income" in the statement of changes in equity.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
Defined contribution plans
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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(vi) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.

(n) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be
required to settle such an obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance
cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as
a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non -occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote,
are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.
Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of
income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

(o) Borrowing costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the year in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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(p) Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions for which discrete financial information is
available. Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the chief operating decision
maker evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various
performance indicators by geographic segments.

(q) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
deposits with banks having the maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.
(s) Cash Flow Statement
Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts
or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

(t) Dividends
The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company.
As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders.
A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

(u) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods
presented.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are
affected.
Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
in respect of impairment of non current assets, useful lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation
of deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities and fair value measurement.
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(i) Impairment of non - financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet
committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU
being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well
as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These
estimates are most relevant to disclosure of fair value of investment property recorded by the
Company.

(ii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

(iii) Valuation of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

(iv) Defined benefit plans
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

(v) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can
be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the
application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the
cash outflows can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities
are reviewed regularly and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.
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(vi) Fair value measurement
Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where
active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets. This involves developing estimates
and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management
bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case
management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices
that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

3 Recent Indian Accounting Standards / Pronouncements
"The Ministry of Corporate affairs (“MCA”) through a notification dated March 24, 2021, amended
Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 which will be applicable effective April 1, 2021.
•Disclosure of shareholding of promoters in specified format.
• Disclosure of current maturities of Long term borrowings under the head short term borrowings
• Disclosure of ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables, capital work-in-progress and
intangible asset under development in specified format.
• Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head ‘financial liabilities’, duly distinguished
as current or non-current.
• Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes in equity share
capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the current reporting
period.
• If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for which it was borrowed from banks and
financial institutions, then disclosure of details of where it has been used.
• Financial Ratios to be disclosed along with explanation with respect to items included in numerator
and denominator.
• Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ such as compliance with approved
schemes of arrangements, compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of immovable
property not held in name of company, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial
personnel (KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc.
• Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and
crypto or virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the notes forming part of
the standalone financial statements.
The Company will evaluate the above and give effect as required by law."
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(Amount In Rs.)

4. Property, Plant and Equipment
Office equipment

Buildings

Computer

Plant and
Equipment

R&D
Equipment

Furniture and
Fixtures

Vehicles

Total

Cost
As at March 31, 2019
Additions
Disposals/Transfer
As at March 31, 2020
Additions
Disposals/Transfer
As at March 31, 2021
Accumulated Depreciation
As at March 31, 2019
Depreciation
Adjusted during the year
As at March 31, 2020
Depreciation
Adjusted during the year
As at March 31, 2021

4,53,013
4,53,013
2,31,598
6,84,611

17,58,14,314
17,58,14,314
13,60,536
17,71,74,850

34,02,552
12,52,296
46,54,848
9,81,943
56,36,791

93,25,64,256
3,43,03,772
96,68,68,028
2,90,21,801
(75,04,300)
98,83,85,529

4,08,783
4,08,783
4,08,783

44,49,258
24,152
44,73,410
1,32,470
46,05,880

37,01,929
37,01,929
37,01,929

1,12,07,94,106
3,55,80,220
1,15,63,74,325
3,17,28,348
(75,04,300)
1,18,05,98,374

1,24,893
84,899
2,09,792
93,790
3,03,581

1,27,81,943
57,15,533
1,84,97,476
57,22,237
2,42,19,713

10,13,658
11,54,818
21,68,476
12,56,702
34,25,179

22,35,14,028
7,96,88,197
30,32,02,225
7,98,15,689
(22,01,402)
38,08,16,512

1,04,761
63,107
1,67,868
16,996
1,84,864

16,01,119
6,12,636
22,13,755
2,95,296
25,09,052

6,77,134
4,93,071
11,70,205
4,91,724
16,61,929

23,98,17,536
8,78,12,261
32,76,29,797
8,76,92,434
(22,01,402)
41,31,20,829

Net Book Value
As at March 31, 2021
As at March 31, 2020

3,81,030
2,43,222

15,29,55,137
15,73,16,838

22,11,613
24,86,372

60,75,69,018
66,36,65,803

2,23,919
2,40,915

20,96,829
22,59,655

20,40,000
25,31,724

76,74,77,545
82,87,44,528
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(Amount In Rs.)

5. Intangible Assets
Product
Development Cost
Cost
As at March 31, 2019
Additions/Transfer
Disposals/Transfer
As at March 31, 2020
Additions/Transfer
Disposals/Transfer
As at March 31, 2021
Amortisation
As at March 31, 2019
Amortisation
Disposals/Transfer
As at March 31, 2020
Amortisation
Disposals/Transfer
As at March 31, 2021
Net Book Value
As at March 31, 2021
As at March 31, 2020

Goodwill

Total

15,68,464
15,68,464
15,68,464

92,36,278
92,36,278
92,36,278

1,08,04,742
1,08,04,742
1,08,04,742

1,93,501
2,98,825
4,92,326
2,98,008
7,90,334

69,27,207
23,09,071
92,36,278
92,36,278

71,20,708
26,07,896
97,28,604
2,98,008
1,00,26,612

7,78,130
10,76,138

-

7,78,130
10,76,138
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(Amount in Rs.)

Non-Current Investments
Investments in Equity Instruments
Wholly owned subsidiary company (Unquoted) - (at cost)
10,000 shares, Face Value UK $ 10 per share of Kopran (UK) Limited,
London, UK
Total

7

Other non current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits
Total

8

Other non current assets
Capital Advances
Deduction of Income Tax
Premium on Land under operating lease
Prepaid expenses

9

Inventories

Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good
Receivable from other parties
Receivable from related party
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Less: Expected credit loss allowance
Total

11

As at
March 31, 2020

8,87,325
8,87,325

8,87,325
8,87,325

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

88,50,508
88,50,508

67,00,508
67,00,508

As at
As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,22,36,436
67,80,749
23,53,256
15,95,863
6,79,41,647
6,89,27,151
2,64,805
4,36,137
8,27,96,144
7,77,39,900
Total

(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw materials {Includes stocks in transit Rs. 2,35,69,318 (March 31, 2020:
Rs. 38,33,641)}
Work-in-Process
Finished Goods
Stores & Spares
Packing Materials
Total
10

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

39,26,45,062
29,65,61,774
1,45,78,766
1,61,20,312
51,03,906
72,50,09,820

13,16,61,043
23,07,94,497
8,85,38,012
1,65,50,447
57,11,227
47,32,55,226

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

68,73,74,966
1,81,95,604

48,82,93,294
1,85,92,941

29,31,969
(29,31,969)

41,03,554
(41,03,554)

70,55,70,570

50,68,86,235

As at
As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,25,620
20,748

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
Balances with banks
On Current Accounts
Total

2,79,811

1,52,928

4,05,431

1,73,676
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(Amount in Rs.)
As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

3,06,31,774

2,96,68,250

3,06,31,774

2,96,68,250

As at
March 31, 2021
Total

As at
March 31, 2020
9,13,78,258
9,13,78,258

Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits (Maturity of more than 3 months & less than 12 months)
(Held as margin money or security against the guarantees)
Total

13

Current Financial Assets-Loans
Loan to Related Party

14

Current Financial Assets-Others
Advance to Employees
Foreign currency forward contracts

15

Other Current Assets
Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Prepaid Expenses
Others

As at
As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
8,87,500
7,62,900
1,22,68,766
1,31,56,266
7,62,900
Total
As at
As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
16,24,52,853
6,12,11,427
52,10,211
66,07,151
94,27,539
25,47,409
17,70,90,603
7,03,65,987
Total
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(Amount in Rs.)

Equity Share Capital
As at March 31, 2021
Number
Authorised
Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up
Equity Shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid-up

(i)

Amount

As at March 31, 2020
Number
Amount

2,00,00,000
2,00,00,000

20,00,00,000
20,00,00,000

2,00,00,000
2,00,00,000

20,00,00,000
20,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

20,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

20,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

20,00,00,000.00

2,00,00,000

20,00,00,000.00

Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period.

Particulars
Equity shares outstanding the beginning
of the year
Equity shares issued during the year
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the
year

Number

As at
March 31, 2021

Number

As at
March 31, 2020

2,00,00,000
-

20,00,00,000
-

2,00,00,000
-

20,00,00,000
-

2,00,00,000

20,00,00,000

2,00,00,000

20,00,00,000

(ii)
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(Amount in Rs.)
Terms/Rights Attached to Equity Shares
As to voting
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10. Each holder of the equity share is
entitled to one vote per share.
As to distribution of dividends
The Shareholders are entitled to receive dividend in proportion to the amount of paid up equity shares held by them. The Company has
not declared any dividend during the year.
As to repayment of capital
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares are entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion of the number of shares held by the shareholders.

(iv)

Share in the company held by holding company and subsidiaries of the Holding company in aggregate
Name of Shareholder

As at March 31, 2021
No. of Shares held
% of Holding

As at March 31, 2020
No. of Shares held
% of Holding

Equity Shares
99.50
Kopran Limited
1,99,00,000
Kopran Lifescience Limited
0.50
1,00,000
Shares of the Company are held by holding company and fellow subsidiary of the holding Company.
(v)

1,99,00,000
1,00,000

99.50
0.50

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Name of Shareholder
Equity Shares
Kopran Limited

As at March 31, 2021
No. of Shares held
% of Holding
1,99,00,000

99.50

As at March 31, 2020
No. of Shares held
% of Holding
1,99,00,000

99.50
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As at
March 31, 2021
2,78,64,583
1,34,70,78,150
15,16,90,308

Other Equity
Capital Contribution from holding
Securities Premium Reserve
Retained Earnings

As at
March 31, 2020
2,16,14,583
1,34,70,78,150
(20,20,23,815)

Sub - Total - A

1,52,66,33,041

1,16,66,68,918

Sub - Total - B
Total - A + B

32,385
32,385
1,52,66,65,426

(10,16,066)
(10,16,066)
1,16,56,52,852

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans

Note
Refer statement of changes in equity for details of movements in the balances of each items of Reserves and Surplus and OCI
under the head "Other Equity" and the nature and purpose of each reserve.
18

As at
March 31, 2021

Long term Borrowings
Term Loans
Unsecured
From others
Working Capital Term Loan
Secured
Working Capital Loans from Banks
Inter corporate deposits
Unsecured
From Related Parties
Total

As at
March 31, 2020

18,57,51,697

19,75,99,631

27,77,770

-

-

2,40,00,000

18,85,29,467

22,15,99,631

* The term loan carry adjustible interest rate of ICLR - 10% margin p.a. and is repayable in 144 equal monthly installments. The
loan is secured against property of Bottle Closure India Private Limited. The loan is guaranted by others.
** Working Capital Term Loan carries interest of MCLR and is repayable in 18 equal monthly installments. The loans are
secured by hypothecation of inventories and book debts (present and future) also first pari passu charge by way of mortgage
on all immoveable properties and by way of hypothecation on all the moveable fixed assets of the company both present and
future and guaranteed by director / promoter jointly and severally.

19

As at
March 31, 2021

Non - current Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity
Leave encashment
Total

20

As at
March 31, 2021

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred Tax Liability
Relating to depreciation on fixed assets

(a)

Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment
Provision for bonus
Provision for expected credit loss
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement

2,86,68,310
74,12,342
3,60,80,652

(b)
(c )
Total

As at
March 31, 2020
2,62,32,617
69,71,457
3,32,04,074
As at
March 31, 2020

3,74,11,810

3,67,82,957

74,62,513
20,07,956
4,60,283
7,51,335
1,06,82,087
2,67,29,722

67,04,763
17,94,588
3,81,953
10,32,782
99,14,086
2,68,68,871
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Notes forming part of the standalone Financial Statements
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As at
March 31, 2021

Current financial liabilities - Borrowings
Secured, Repayable on demand
From banks
Cash credit / packing credit
Buyers credit
Total

21,36,16,118
8,39,41,760
29,75,57,878

As at
March 31, 2020

21,78,21,242
6,93,70,473
28,71,91,714

(a)

Cash Credit / Packing Credit & Buyers Credit
Cash credit / Packing credit facilities availed from banks are secured by hypothecation of inventories and book debts (present
and future) also first pari passu charge by way of mortgage on all immoveable properties and by way of hypothecation on all
the moveable fixed assets of the company both present and future and guaranteed by director / promoter jointly and
severally. The said facility is repayable on demand.

22

Trade Payables

Total

As at
March 31, 2021
1,04,50,911
46,71,73,085
47,76,23,996

As at
March 31, 2020
17,03,587
25,23,64,173
25,40,67,760

Total

As at
March 31, 2021
1,90,76,180
1,64,397
16,00,000
5,33,72,850
2,70,34,411
2,99,26,692
13,11,74,530

As at
March 31, 2020
74,81,460
4,15,520
18,50,000
80,27,682
2,04,41,578
3,63,79,866
7,45,96,106

Total

As at
March 31, 2021
30,89,417
20,98,316
17,83,481
69,71,214

As at
March 31, 2020
4,81,67,610
28,86,980
27,13,309
5,37,67,899

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note No. 43)
Due to Others

23

Current finanical liabilities - Other
Current maturities of long-term Borrowing
Interest accrued but not due
Security deposits
Creditors for Capital supplies/services
Employees Benefits Payables
Other payables

24

Other Current Liabilities
Advance Received from Customers
Statutory Dues (including Provident Fund and Tax Deducted at Source)
Others

25

Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity
Leave encashment

26

Total

4,53,012
4,23,402
8,76,414

4,07,415
1,58,977
5,66,392

Total

As at
March 31, 2021
2,11,21,686
2,11,21,686

As at
March 31, 2020
18,45,322
18,45,322

Other Current Liabilities
Provision for tax (Net of advance tax)

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Financial Statements

(Amount in Rs.)

27 Revenue From Operations
Sale of Products
Other operating revenues
Scrap sales
Export Incentive
Royalty Income
Total

Year Ended
March 31, 2021
2,85,23,77,804

Year Ended
March 31, 2020
1,89,08,40,083

40,09,956
4,39,84,989
12,00,000
2,90,15,72,749

18,83,105
3,25,86,740
12,00,000
1,92,65,09,928

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

28 Other Income
Interest Income
On fixed deposit
Others
Recovery of bad debts earlier written off
Reversal of Expected Credit Loss
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation
Miscellaneous Income
Total

13,33,263
58,41,702
70,00,000
11,71,585
7,67,90,359
85,53,729
10,06,90,638
Year Ended
March 31, 2021

29 Cost of Material Consumed
Raw material consumption
Opening stock
Add: Purchases

Year Ended
March 31, 2020
16,91,328
30,45,018
16,71,732
64,08,078
Year Ended
March 31, 2020

Sub - Total

13,16,61,043
2,05,67,45,855
2,18,84,06,899
39,26,45,062
1,79,57,61,837

20,03,97,199
1,18,19,15,334
1,38,23,12,533
13,16,61,043
1,25,06,51,490

Sub - Total
Total

57,11,227
1,81,75,016
2,38,86,243
51,03,906
1,87,82,337
1,81,45,44,174

53,93,584
1,76,60,746
2,30,54,330
57,11,227
1,73,43,103
1,26,79,94,593

Less : Closing stock
Packing materials consumption
Opening stock
Add: Purchases
Less : Closing stock

30 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Opening Inventories
Finished Goods
Work-in-progress
Closing Inventories
Finished Goods
Work-in-progress
Total

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

8,85,38,012
23,07,94,497
31,93,32,509

2,84,06,567
23,61,40,922
26,45,47,489

1,45,78,766
29,65,61,774
31,11,40,540
81,91,969

8,85,38,012
23,07,94,497
31,93,32,509
(5,47,85,020)

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Financial Statements

(Amount in Rs.)

Total

Year Ended
March 31, 2021
16,67,11,446
98,39,169
1,16,29,015
18,81,79,631

Year Ended
March 31, 2020
14,98,08,936
82,91,884
1,02,04,035
16,83,04,855

Total

Year Ended
March 31, 2021
2,20,08,215
78,43,550
2,98,51,765

Year Ended
March 31, 2020
2,82,66,360
28,99,673
3,11,66,033

Year Ended
March 31, 2021
3,62,41,532
10,96,45,077
1,33,10,100

Year Ended
March 31, 2020
2,32,00,570
11,86,82,052
1,32,67,005

50,56,061
1,21,04,362
26,08,204
50,55,065
2,70,53,551
1,50,38,069
6,02,82,291
5,08,000
6,52,897
1,97,11,649
25,13,287
1,42,09,903
78,500
11,56,518
4,02,20,120
36,54,45,185

28,68,838
1,21,29,348
32,64,519
25,77,435
2,35,18,449
1,39,94,538
2,59,23,737
5,03,000
40,90,112
1,76,26,079
23,17,624
1,22,68,497
57,000
73,48,904
-13,61,449
4,65,86,335
32,88,62,591

31 Employee Benefits Expense
Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff welfare expenses

32 Finance Costs
Interest expense
Other borrowing cost

33 Other Expenses
Stores and spares consumed
Power and fuel
Rent
Repairs and Maintenance :
Building
Machinery
Others
Insurance
Commission on sales
Job work charges
Packing, freight and forwarding
Payment to auditors (Refer Note No. 44)
Net loss on foreign currency transaction and translation
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets
Legal and professional fees
Rates and taxes
Security and labour charges
Directors' sitting fees
Bad Debts
Less: Provision for Expected credit loss written back
Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone Financial Statements

(Amount in Rs.)

34 Capital Commitments & Contingent liabilities not provided for :

(a) Capital Commitments:
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net
of advances) and not provided for
(b) Contingent liabilities not provided for :
i Corporate guarantee given for loan taken by Holding Company (to the extent
amount utilised)
ii Disputed tax Matters :
Excise duty demand disputed in appeal
Service tax demand disputed in appeal

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

1,99,36,102

83,10,577

16,32,17,307

14,32,23,816

4,99,898
3,40,463

20,02,337
3,40,463

Note: Other Legal issues are either in ordinary course of business or not of substantial nature and management is
reasonably confident of their positive outcome. Management shall deal with them judiciously and provide for
appropriately, if any such need arises.
35 Basic and diluted earnings per share [EPS] computed in accordance with Ind AS 33 “Earnings Per Share”

Particulars
Net Profit as per the Statement of Profit and Loss available for Equity
Shareholders (in Rs.)
Number of Equity Shares outstanding
Weighted average number of Equity Shares for Earnings Per Share computation:
Nominal value of equity shares (in Rs.)
Earnings Per Share:
Basic (in Rs. )
Diluted (in Rs.)
36 CIF Value of Imports

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

35,37,14,123
2,00,00,000

6,78,69,449
2,00,00,000

2,00,00,000
10

2,00,00,000
10

17.69
17.69

3.39
3.39

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

Raw Materials/Packing Material
Traded Goods
Capital Goods

1,41,97,88,858
2,94,40,125
95,32,035

70,74,98,427
30,65,080

Total

1,45,87,61,018

71,05,63,507

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
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37 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

(Amount in Rs.)
Year Ended
Year Ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2,19,58,178
1,55,60,967
13,41,836
15,22,214
6,16,021
33,77,975
3,97,800
41,79,203
4,82,350
1,63,340
1,74,829
56,650
24,02,336
28,84,063
3,11,54,753
2,39,63,009

Commission
Bank Interest on Buyers Credit
Travelling Expenses
Product Development Charges
Plant Inspection Charges
Product Registration Charges
Professional Charges
Others
Total
38 Earnings in Foreign Currency

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

FOB Value of Exports

1,90,10,20,468

1,09,41,24,272

Total

1,90,10,20,468

1,09,41,24,272

39 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits"
A) Defined Contribution Plan
Contributions to defined Contribution plan, recognised are charged off for the year are as under:
Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

Employer’s contribution to provident fund
Employer’s contribution to Labour Welfare Fund
Employer’s contribution to ESIC

90,58,756
23,373
7,57,040

75,30,627
22,572
7,38,685

Total

98,39,169

82,91,884

B) Defined Benefit plan
The employees’ gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on
Part A : Gratuity Benefits (Unfunded)
Particular

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Present value of the projected benefit obligation
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Year
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer

2,66,40,032
18,16,850
24,32,238
(3,58,105)

2,29,14,534
17,85,042
19,47,901
(3,61,107)

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Year

(4,12,372)
(9,97,321)
2,91,21,322

25,31,572
(21,77,910)
2,66,40,032
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Particular

(Amount in Rs.)
As at
March 31, 2020

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Change in the fair value of plan assets
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Year
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
Interest income
Contributions by the employer
Expected contributions by the employees
Return on plan assets, exluding interest income
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Year
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value obligations at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year
Funded status surplus / (deficit)
Liability/(Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

2,91,21,322
2,91,21,322
2,91,21,322

2,66,40,032
2,66,40,032
2,66,40,032

Net interest cost for the current year
Present value benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Net liability / (asset) at the beginning
Interest cost
Interest income
Interest cost for the current year

2,66,40,032
2,66,40,032
18,16,850
18,16,850

2,29,14,534
2,29,14,534
17,85,042
17,85,042

24,32,238
18,16,850
42,49,088

19,47,901
17,85,042
37,32,943

(14,09,693)
(14,09,693)

3,53,662
3,53,662

2,66,40,032
42,49,088
(14,09,693)
(3,58,105)
2,91,21,322

2,29,14,534
37,32,943
3,53,662
(3,61,107)
2,66,40,032

-

-

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the current year
Current service cost
Net interest cost
Past service cost
Expenses recognised
Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the current
year
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income
Change in Asset Ceiling
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI
Balance Sheet Reconciliation
Opening Net Liability
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss
Expenses Recognized in OCI
Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer
Net liability / (asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Category of assets
NIL, as Funding status in unfunded.

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
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Maturity analysis of the benefit payments from the employer
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st following year
2nd following year
3rd following year
4th following year
5th following year
Sum of years of 6 to 10
Sum of years of 11 and above

(Amount in Rs.)

4,53,012
4,88,593
26,47,937
16,72,461
12,24,045
1,35,69,305
4,76,52,164

4,07,415
4,40,293
6,32,233
25,74,890
15,91,214
1,02,52,011
4,63,69,493

Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the projected benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.
Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the projected benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same method as
applied in calculating the projected benefit obligation as recognised in the balance sheet.
There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions
Delta effect of + 0.50% change in rate of discounting
Delta effect of - 0.50% change in rate of discounting
Delta effect of + 0.50% change in rate of salary increase
Delta effect of - 0.50% change in rate of salary increase
Delta effect of + 0.50% change in rate of employee turnover
Delta effect of - 0.50% change in rate of employee turnover
Assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations:
Discount Rate
Rate of increase in Compensation levels
Rate of Employee Turnover
Mortality Rate During Employment

2,91,21,322
(14,04,440)
15,13,750
15,04,493
(14,07,177)
91,554
(98,421)

2,66,40,032
(13,50,215)
14,55,825
1,42,37,906
(13,44,226)
77,950
(83,444)

6.96%
6.00%
1.00%
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

6.82%
6.00%
1.00%

KOPRAN RESEARCH LABORATORIES LIMITED
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(Amount in Rs.)

Part B : Leave Encashment (Unfunded)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2021

Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation
Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year
Interest Cost
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost

71,30,434
4,86,296
9,79,184
-

57,16,427
4,45,310
7,25,678
-

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience
Benefits paid
Obligation at the year end

(1,47,647)
32,676
(6,45,199)
78,35,744

8,07,422
(5,35,890)
(28,513)
71,30,434

-

-

(1,14,971)

2,71,532

(1,14,971)
(1,14,971)

2,71,532
2,71,532

-

-

(78,35,744)
(78,35,744)
(78,35,744)

(71,30,434)
(71,30,434)
(71,30,434)

71,30,434
71,30,434
4,86,296
4,86,296

57,16,427
57,16,427
4,45,310
4,45,310

Change in the Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year
Interest Income
Contributions by the employer
Expected Contributions by the employees
Return on Plan assets, exluding interest income
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Amount recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss for the year
Actuarial (gains) / losses on obligation for the year
Return on plan assets, exluding interest income
Sub- Total
Actuarial loss recognised
Actual Return on Plan Assets
Interest income
Return on plan assets, exluding interest income
Actual return on plan assets
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value obligations at the end of the year
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the year
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Funded Status (Surplus/(dedicit)
Unrecognised Past Service Cost at the end of the year
Net (Liability)/Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet
Interest Cost for the Current Year
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the beginning of the year
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
Net (Liability)/Asset at the beginning
Interest Cost
Interest Income
Net Interest Cost for Current Year
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Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the current year
Current service cost
Net interest cost
Acturial (gains) / losses
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss
Particulars
Balance Sheet reconciliation
Opening net liability
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss
Employers contribution
Benefits paid directly by employer
Net liability / (assets) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Category of Assets
NIL, as Funding status in unfunded
Assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations:
Discount Rate
Rate of increase in Compensation levels
Rate of employee turnover
Mortality Rate During Employment

(Amount in Rs.)

9,79,184
4,86,296
(1,14,971)
13,50,509
As at
March 31, 2021

71,30,434
13,50,509
(6,45,199)
78,35,744

7,25,678
4,45,310
2,71,532
14,42,520
As at
March 31, 2020

57,16,427
14,42,520
(28,513)
71,30,434

6.82%
6.00%
1.00%
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

6.82%
6.00%
1.00%
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(Amount in Rs.)

40 Related Party Disclosures
Names of related parties where control exists:
Holding Company
Key Management Personnel

Kopran Limited
Vandana Somani (Director)
Sunita Banerji (Director)
Mamta Biyani (Director)
Chandra M Singhi (Director)
Rakesh Doshi (Director)
Ahren A Rodrigues (Company Secretary)
K B Shetty (CFO) (till December 14, 2020)
Lekha Jogi (CFO) (w.e.f. December 15, 2020)
Oricon Enterprises Limited

Enterprises significantly influenced by KMP or their relative (With whom there are
transaction)

The following transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:
Holding Company

Nature of Transaction

2020-2021
Loan Taken
Kopran Limited

Key Management Personnel

2019-2020

2020-2021

Total

4,27,14,955
4,27,14,955

Total

4,27,14,955
4,27,14,955

1,02,55,138
1,02,55,138

-

-

Total

34,54,68,696
34,54,68,696

43,77,19,121
43,77,19,121

-

-

-

Total

43,68,46,954
43,68,46,954

34,80,92,944
34,80,92,944

-

-

-

Repayment of Loan taken
Kopran Limited
Oricon Enterprises Limited
Loan Given
Kopran Limited
Repayment of Loan given
Kopran Limited

-

2019-2020

-

-

Enterprises significantly
influenced by KMP or their
relative
2020-2021
2019-2020
2,40,00,000
2,40,00,000

60,00,000
60,00,000

Total
2020-2021
4,27,14,955
4,27,14,955

2019-2020
-

4,27,14,955
2,40,00,000
6,67,14,955

1,02,55,138
60,00,000
1,62,55,138

-

34,54,68,696
34,54,68,696

43,77,19,121
43,77,19,121

-

43,68,46,954
43,68,46,954

34,80,92,944
34,80,92,944

Holding Company

Nature of Transaction

2020-2021
Sales
Kopran Limited

Key Management Personnel

2019-2020

2020-2021

2019-2020

Enterprises significantly
influenced by KMP or their
relative
2020-2021

2019-2020

Total
2020-2021

2019-2020

Total

8,74,75,778
8,74,75,778

4,86,25,754
4,86,25,754

-

-

-

-

8,74,75,778
8,74,75,778

4,86,25,754
4,86,25,754

Total

12,42,93,104
12,42,93,104

8,60,93,274
8,60,93,274

-

-

-

-

12,42,93,104
12,42,93,104

8,60,93,274
8,60,93,274

-

-

5,79,945
5,79,945

28,34,134
28,34,134

Purchases
Kopran Limited
Interest Expense
Oricon Enterprises Limited
Total
Interest Income
Kopran Limited
Total
Expenses
Kopran Limited - Rent
Kopran Limited - Corporate Gurantee Expenses
Oricon Enterprises Limited - Others
Total
Remuneration
Chandra M Singhi
Rakesh Doshi
K B Shetty
Lekha Jogi
Ahren A Rodrigues
Total

-

-

5,79,945
5,79,945

28,34,134
28,34,134

55,36,602
55,36,602

17,52,081
17,52,081

-

-

-

-

55,36,602
55,36,602

17,52,081
17,52,081

1,20,00,000
62,50,000

1,20,00,000
62,50,000

-

-

-

-

1,20,00,000
62,50,000

1,20,00,000
62,50,000

1,82,50,000

1,82,50,000

-

-

-

28,51,411
2,11,01,411

1,82,50,000

-

45,36,046
45,95,000
7,42,888
1,62,268
3,75,492
1,04,11,694

44,22,552
41,45,301
11,11,308
3,34,176
1,00,13,337

-

-

45,36,046
45,95,000
7,42,888
1,62,268
3,75,492
1,04,11,694

44,22,552
41,45,301
11,11,308
3,34,176
1,00,13,337

28,51,411
28,51,411
-

Holding Company

Nature of Transaction
Director Sitting fees
Vandana Somani
Rakesh Doshi
Sunita Banerji
Mamta Biyani
Total
Balance Receivable as at March 31,
Kopran Limited Loan
Kopran Limited Interest
Kopran Limited Trade Receivable
Total
Balance Payable as at March 31,
Oricon Enterprises Limited Interest
Oricon Enterprises Limited Loan
Total

Key Management Personnel

-

-

-

-

1,81,95,604
1,81,95,604

-

8,98,01,385
15,76,873
1,85,92,941
10,99,71,199

-

Enterprises significantly
influenced by KMP or their
relative

Total

18,500
5,000
27,500
27,500
78,500

17,000

-

-

18,500

17,000

21,000
19,000
57,000

-

-

27,500
27,500
73,500

21,000
19,000
57,000

-

-

-

-

1,81,95,604
1,81,95,604

8,98,01,385
15,76,873
1,85,92,941
10,99,71,199

-

-

-

1,92,624
2,40,00,000
2,41,92,624

-

1,92,624
2,40,00,000
2,41,92,624

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amount owed by related parties (March 31, 2020:
NIL). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and market in which the related party operates.
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(Amount in Rs.)

41 Disclosure of Derivatives:
(a) Particulars of derivatives as at balance sheet date:
As at
March 31, 2021
91,00,000
68,99,03,625

Purpose
Forward exchange contracts (for export debtors)
Forward contract value

USD
Rs.

As at
March 31, 2020
71,69,601
53,23,76,337

(i) The foreign currency outstanding balances that have not been hedged by any derivative instrument or otherwise as at March 31, 2021
are as follows:
Particulars

Foreign Currency
Denomination

As at March 31, 2021
Foreign Currency
Amount
Amount

As at March 31, 2020
Foreign Currency
Amount
Amount

11,41,657
8,34,77,955
12,18,321
USD
1,488
1,27,714
1,488
EURO
The foreign currency outstanding has been translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.
Payables

9,21,90,367
1,22,522

42 Segment Reporting:
The company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of "Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API)" which in the context of
Indian accounting standard (Ind AS) 108 on operating segments constitutes a single reportable segment.
43 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME)
No Interest is paid / payable during the year to any enterprise registered under Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 ( MSMED). The information has been determined to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the status of
suppliers under MSMED.
44 Auditors Remuneration

Particulars
Statutory Audit Fees
Tax Audit Fees
Other Matters
Total

Year Ended
March 31, 2021
3,50,000
1,50,000
8,000
5,08,000

Year Ended
March 31, 2020
3,50,000
1,50,000
3,000
5,03,000

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Year Ended
March 31, 2020

45 Current tax and deferred tax
a) Income Tax Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss
Particulars
Current Tax
Current Income Tax Charge
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total
Deferred Tax
In respect of current year
Total
Total tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

12,54,06,364
12,54,06,364

2,42,63,757
20,37,506
2,63,01,263

(5,00,391)
(5,00,391)
12,49,05,973

12,42,438
12,42,438
2,75,43,700

b) Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s domestic tax rate
Year Ended
Particulars
March 31, 2021
Net profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss Account (before tax)
47,86,20,096
25.63
Corporate Tax Rate as per Income tax Act, 1961
12,26,49,271
Tax on Accounting Profit
Tax difference on account of:
Expenses not allowable under the Income tax Act, 1961
2,59,08,536
(5,00,391)
Timing Differences - Deferred tax assets
Expenses allowable under the Income tax Act, 1961
(2,31,51,444)
Taxation adjustment of earlier years
Income tax expense recognised in profit and loss
12,49,05,973

Year Ended
March 31, 2020
9,54,13,149
27.82
2,65,43,938
2,92,89,095
12,42,438
(3,15,69,277)
20,37,506
2,75,43,700
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d) Movement of Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2021
Recognised in
Opening
Particulars
Balance
profit and Loss
Relating to depreciation on fixed assets
(3,67,82,957)(a)
(6,28,853)
Provision for gratuity
67,04,763
11,18,993
Provision for leave encashment
17,94,588
2,13,369
Provision for expected credit loss
10,32,782
(2,81,448)
3,81,953
78,330
Provision for bonus
Net Deferred Tax Assets
(2,68,68,871)
5,00,391

Recognised in
OCI
(3,61,242)
(3,61,242)

Closing Balance
(3,74,11,810)
74,62,513
20,07,956
7,51,335
4,60,283
(2,67,29,722)

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2020
Particulars
Relating to depreciation on fixed assets
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment
Provision for expected credit loss
Provision for Bonus
MAT Credit Entilement
Net Deferred Tax Assets

Opening Balance
(3,55,62,287)
63,74,823
15,90,310
15,20,364
4,50,357
97,29,798
(1,58,96,634)

Recognised in
profit and Loss
(12,20,670)
3,29,940
2,04,278
(4,87,581)
(68,404)
(12,42,438)

Offset against
Current tax liability
(97,29,798)
(97,29,798)

Closing Balance
(3,67,82,957)
67,04,763
17,94,588
10,32,782
3,81,953
(2,68,68,871)
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46. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
i. Financial Instruments by Category
Carrying Amount
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Level 3
Amortised cost
Non-Current Financial Assets - Investments
Non-Current Financial Assets - Other
Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables
Current Financial Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Financial Assets - Bank Balances other than
cash and cash equivalents
Current Financial Assets - Loans
Current Financial Assets - Other
Total
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Level 3
Amortised cost
Borrowings
Trade Payables
Capital Creditors
Other financial liabilities
Total

Fair Value
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2020

8,87,325
88,50,508
70,55,70,570

8,87,325
67,00,508
50,68,86,235

9,34,600
88,50,508
70,55,70,570

9,34,600
67,00,508
50,68,86,235

4,05,431

1,73,676

4,05,431

1,73,676

3,06,31,774
1,31,56,266

2,96,68,250
9,13,78,258
7,62,900

3,06,31,774
1,31,56,266

2,96,68,250
9,13,78,258
7,62,900

74,97,64,041

62,88,69,319

74,97,64,041

62,88,69,319

48,60,87,344
-

50,87,91,345
-

13,11,74,530

7,45,96,106

48,60,87,344
13,11,74,530

50,87,91,345
7,45,96,106

61,72,61,874

58,33,87,451

61,72,61,874

58,33,87,451

The management assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current financial
assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

ii. Fair Value Measurement
Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.
Level 2 - The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

iii. Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific Valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
- the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis
iv. Valuation processes
The accounts and finance department of the company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team reports direclty to the chief financial officer (CFO) and
the audit committte. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team regulary in line
with the company's reporting requirements.
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47. Financial Risk Management
The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company’s
financial risk management policy is set by the managing board.
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a
financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market
risk sensitive financial instruments including loans and borrowings, foreign currency receivables and payables.

The Company manages market risk through treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over the
entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management objectives and policies,
which are approved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this department include management of
cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures and borrowing strategies.
Capital Management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing the return
to shareholders by striking a balance between debt and equity. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debts (offset
by cash and bank balances) and equity of the Company (Comprising issued capital, reserves, retained earnings). The Company is
not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements except financial covenants agreed with lenders.
In order to optimize capital allocation, the review of capital employed is done considering the amount of capital required to fund
capacity expansion, increased working capital commensurate with increase in size of business and also fund investments in new
ventures which will drive future growth. The Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) reviews the capital structure of the Company on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the CFO considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.
The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk as at the respective reporting dates.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Company’s exposure to exchange fluctuation risk is very limited for its purchase from overseas suppliers in various foreign
currencies.
The following table analyzes foreign currency risk from financial instruments as of:
Trade Payable
In US $
In INR
In EURO
In INR
Conversion date of US $ & EURO is 31-Mar-2021

As at
As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
11,41,657
12,18,321
8,34,77,955
9,23,12,889
1,488
1,488
1,27,714
1,22,522
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
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Foreign exchange risk sensitivity:
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and negative number below indicates a decrease in profit. Following is
the analysis of change in profit where the Indian Rupee strengthens and weakens by 11% against the relevant currency:

Foreign Currency Payables

As at
March 31, 2021
1% strengthen
1% weakening
(8,36,057)
8,36,057

As at
March 31, 2020
1% strengthen
1% weakening
(9,24,354)
9,24,354

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not representative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.
Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter party resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure
to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting to Rs. 70,55,70,570 and Rs. 50,68,86,235 as
of March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 respectively. Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue
earned from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits
and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course
of business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or
gain. The Company uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables. The provision
matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors and the Company’s historical experience for
customers.
The average credit period on sale of goods is 90 to 180 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.
Credit Risk Exposure
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international and domestic credit rating agencies.
Liquidity Risk
The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations.
The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is
perceived.
As of March 31, 2021, The Company had a working capital of Rs. 71,65,38,747/- including cash and cash equivalent of Rs.
4,05,431/-.
As of March 31, 2020, The Company had a working capital of Rs. 50,04,55,340/- including cash and cash equivalent of Rs.
1,73,676/-.
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48. Previous year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified to conform with the current years' presentation wherever considered
necessary.
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